
THE CITY OF PLEASANTON 
November 18, 2016 

A D DE N D UM N 0. 1 

BRIDGE PAINTING: BERNAL AVENUE BRIDGE OVER ARROYO DE LA 
LAGUANA, CIP NO 135025 - FED ID 5101(028) 

This Addendum is hereby made a part of the project contract documents. It shall be the 
responsibility of the general contractor to inform any affected sub-bidder of the content 
of this Addendum. 

The contract documents are modified/clarified as follows: 

1) The bid opening date is hereby extended to Wednesday, November 30, 2016. 
Replace all references to the bid opening of "November 27, 2016" in the plans 
and specifications to "November 30, 2016". The bidding period is being 
extended to allow additional time after the Holidays. 

2) Replace Special Provision l 4-8.02A "A. No individual piece of equipment shall 
produce noise level exceeding 83 dBA ... " with "A. No individual piece of 
equipment shall produce noise level exceeding 86 dBA .. .. " See response to bid 
RFI #2 for additional clarification on the noise requirements. 

3) Bid Item 7. Noise Monitoring shall be deleted from the bid items. See updated 
"Bid Proposal" 

4) Bid Item l 0. Public Safety Plan shall be deleted from the bid items. See updated 
"Bid Proposal" 

5) Attached are the Federal Minimum Wage Rates to be incorporated as part of the 
specification for use at the time of bid for the project. 

6) Replace "Bid Proposal" on page 4-7 of the specifications and page 1-4 of the 
Contractor bid forms with the attached "Bid Proposal" removing bid item 7 and 
10. 

Request of Information during Bid Phase for: 
Bridge Painting: Bernal Avenue Bridge over Arroyo De La Laguna, 

CIP No. 135025 - FED ID 5101(028) 

1. Can the Bid Opening date be extended to allow time for DBE and delays associated 
with the Holidays? 



The date is fixed upon a City Council award date of December 201
h to allow time to 

get the bird netting installed prior to bird nesting season in February. The bid 
opening date shall be extended to Wednesday, November 30, at 2:00pm. 

2. Would you clarify what is meant by "equipment" and the "property plane of the 
project" (in Note 3 in the General Plans Page 2 of 2)? Depending on the adjustment 
of the abrasive, an abrasive blast nozzle will commonly produce between 100 and 125 
dBA. Most dust collectors and vacuum recovery units will easily exceed 100 dBA. Is 
Note 3 limited to independent equipment such as air compressors, dust collectors and 
vacuums or does it include abrasive blast nozzles inside the containment? 

Noise levels shall be measured at 25 ' from the contractor' s containment zone or 
individual piece of equipment outside of the contractor' s containment zone. It is 
understood that the noise levels inside the containment zone (at the blasting nozzle) 
will exceed the 86 dBA but contractor shall take measures to dampen sound to 
allowable limits. 

3. What is considered the "property plane of the project"? 

The property plane shall be further defined as at the road right-of-way adjacent to a 
property, see attached map for amended property plane for the southeast quadrant. 

4. Is it the intention of the specification to construct sound walls to mitigate the sounds 
associated with the work? 

At no time shall the noise level at the property plane exceed the 86 dBA during 
working hours and 70 dBA after work hours. Noise mitigation measure may be 
required based on contractor equipment to ensure that the project is "silent" after 
working hours including the running of necessary generators and dehumidification 
equipment. 

Replace special provision l 4-8.02A "A. No individual piece of equipment shall 
produce noise level exceeding 83 dBA ... . " with "A. No individual piece of 
equipment shall produce noise level exceeding 86 dBA .... " 

5. The standard Caltrans specifications are for repainting with spot blasting. The 
sequence is to pressure wash, spot blast, prime and paint. 

Caltrans 2010 standard specification: 
"59-2.03B(2)(a) 
General 
Clean previously painted surfaces by pressure washing or steam cleaning before 
performing other cleaning or painting activities. Remove gloss from existing paint 
without removing sound paint. Lightly roughen remaining areas of gloss using 100-
to 200-grit sandpaper. Remove paint that becomes loose, curled, lifted, or that loses 
its bond after cleaning to sound paint or metal. 
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get the bird netting installed prior to bird nesting season in February. The bid 
opening date shall be extended to Wednesday, November 30, at 2:00pm. 
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Note 3 limited to independent equipment such as air compressors, dust collectors and 
vacuums or does it include abrasive blast nozzles inside the containment? 

Noise level shall be measured at 25 ' from the contractor's containment zone or 
individual piece of equipment outside of the contractor' s containment zone. It is 
understood that the noise levels inside the containment zone (at the blasting nozzle) 
will exceed the 86 dBA but contractor shall take measures to dampen sound to 
allowable limit . 

3. What is considered the "property plane of the project"? 

The property plane shall be further defined as at the road right-of-way adjacent to a 
property, ee attached map for amended property plane for the outhea t quadrant. 

4. Is it the intention of the specification to construct sound walls to mitigate the sounds 
associated with the work? 

At no time shall the noise level at the property plane exceed the 86 dBA during 
working hours and 70 dBA after work hours. Noise mitigation measure may be 
required based on contractor equipment to ensure that the project is "silent" after 
working hours including the running of necessary generators and dehumidification 
equipment. 

Replace special provision 14-8.02A "A. No individual piece of equipment shall 
produce noise level exceeding 83 dBA .... " with "A. No individual piece of 
equipment shall produce noise level exceeding ~dBA .... " 

5. The standard Caltrans specifications are for repainting with spot blasting. The 
sequence is to pressure wash, spot blast, prime and paint. 

Cal trans 2010 standard specification: 
"59-2.03B(2)(a) 
General 
Clean previously painted surfaces by pressure washing or steam cleaning before 
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its bond after cleaning to sound paint or metal. 
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After pressure washing or steam cleaning, spot blast clean painted surfaces having 
rust or foreign material remaining that would hinder bonding of new paint as 
determined by the Engineer. When there is no bid item for spot blast cleaning, this is 
change order work. Spot blast clean surfaces under SSPC-SP 6. For small areas, the 
Engineer may allow cleaning under SSPC-SP 11. Remove dirt, loose rust, mill scale, 
or paint not firmly bonded to surfaces under SS PC-SP 2. Feather edges of remaining 
paint. Do not use pneumatic chipping hammers unless authorized." 

6. Because this project is a complete removal and we' re not painting over existing paint, 
is there any point in washing the bridge before we perform a complete removal? 

Cleaning the bridge is required prior to blasting the bridge per project specification 
and SSPC recommendations. 

7. I'm looking through the drawings and I don' t see a layout on locations for the traffic 
control devices, signage, lights and other required items. Other information we need 
is the specific kinds of devices, signage, lights and other required items that are 
acceptable for this work. 

See page 86-87 Temporary Traffic Control of the project specifications. The 
contractor is responsible to develop traffic control plan in conformance to the special 
provisions and City standard specifications. This will include but not limited a 
temporary traffic signal in conformance to MUTCD standard "Temporary Traffic 
Control Signal Method of One-Lane, Two-Way Traffic Control" 

8. There is a statement on page 86 of the special provisions that the contractor will be 
billed if the City deems it necessary to maintain the traffic control devices. What is 
considered "necessary"? If the contractor doesn' t respond to a phone call within so 
many hours or is the contractor liable for the City' s costs without notification? What 
is the cost for overtime rate for two technicians and a vehicle with a two hour 
minimum? 

In the event the contractor does not respond in a timely fashion when informed by the 
City of an issue with the traffic control devices and the City has to call out city crews 
to restore the traffic control devices to the approved traffic control plan the contractor 
will be charged. The costs will be billed according to the crew that attends to the 
issue. 

9. There is a bid item for noise monitoring but I can' t find anything telling me what is 
required under this item. 

Bid Item 7. Noise Monitoring shall be deleted from the bid items. See updated "Bid 
Proposal" 

l 0. There is a bid item for Tree Trimming and the specials require a state certified 
arborist but after visiting the site, I don ' t see which trees need to be trimmed. There 
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is one tree growing directly under the bridge that should be removed but the other 
than that, there don' t appear to be any trees close enough to interfere with the work. 
Would you clarify which trees need to be trimmed? 

See page 91 "Tree Trimming - Trim trees as required to provide access to bridge 
without trees impacting work." The trees that need to be trimmed depend on the 
contractor' s equipment that will be used and thus not identified. Tree removal is not 
permitted. 

11. There is a bid item for a public safety plan and when I review the special provisions, 
it seems that the specials are describing a plan for crack treatment. Would you clarify 
what is required for the public safety plan as it applies to the blasting and painting of 
the bridge? 

A Public Safety Plan is not required, and can be removed from the bid list. A new bid 
list will be issued as part of the addendum issued later this week. 

12. There is a requirement for a maintenance bond but I can' t find where it defines the 
duration. 

See page 25 Maintenance Bond, top of the page. 

13. On Drawing S-2 there is a note requiring the K-Rail to be anchored. Generally, 
anchoring temporary K-Rail is beneficial when it is placed within two feet of an 
excavation but driving anchors on a bridge creates a risk of damaging the bridge. Is 
this note something left over from another project or is it the intention of the City to 
install anchors into the bridge deck? If anchoring is required, we need to know the 
method and details of what is required for the installation and repair of the bridge 
after removal. 

Anchoring of the K-Rail is required when placed within 2' of the scaffolding. K-Rail 
at the pedestrian walkway does not need to be anchored. Anchoring shall be in 
conformance with Caltrans Standard Plans T3A & T3B and referenced additional 
details from note 3 to see "Bridge Memo to Designers" Manual that identify the 
method of construction. 

14. Will the City notify the utility company about the work next to their powerlines? The 
lines look to be less than 10 feet from the bridge. Will the power line next to the 
bridge be de-energized during the scaffolding installation and scaffolding removal? 

The utility companies are aware of the work that is going to take place adjacent to the 
powerlines. The City notified them during quarterly meetings as well as plans has 
been forward to the companies. There are no plans to de-energize the lines. The lines 
closest to the bridge are Comcast and AT&T. 
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Harold Johnson 
Regional Construction Specialist 
Comcast Cable 
3011 Comcast Pl. 
Livermore, CA 94551 
United States of America 
T- 925-371-3506 
M-510-377-5462 
Email: Harold _Johnson@cable.comcast.com 

David Cheney 
AT&T North Bay C&E 
Public Works Coordinator 
2600 Camino Ramon Rm 2E950K 
San Ramon CA 94583 
Tel: 925-328-6894 
Mob: 925-548-8217 
Fax: 925-830-0564 
Email: dc2956@att.com 

Jessica Jones 
Industrial Power Engineer I Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 
Office: 510.373.2603 I Cell 510.760.8879 
998 Murrieta Blvd. , Livermore CA 94551 

All other items of work in the contract document remain unchanged. Acknowledgement 
and a signed copy of this Addendum shall be included in the Bid Proposal. 

Stephen M. Kirkpatrick 
City Engineer 

ACKNOWLEDGED: 

Company 
Date: 

By:------------ Title: 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 

--------

--------
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BID PROPOSAL 

BRIDGE PAINTING: BERNAL AVENUE BRIDGE OVER ARROYO DE LA LAGUNA, 
CIP NO. 135025 - FED ID 5101(028) 

DATE: 

Proposal of (hereinafter called 
"Bidder") a organized and ex1stmg under the laws of the State 

---- , doing business as , to the City of Pleasanton, City Clerk, 123 
Main Street, Pleasanton, California (hereinafter called "City"). 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Bidder, in compliance with the invitation for bids for the BRIDGE PAINTING: BERNAL 
A VENUE BRIDGE OVER ARROYO DE LA LAGUNA, CIP NO. 135025 - FED ID 5101(028). 
City of Pleasanton, having examined the Plans and Specifications and related documents and the 
premises of the proposed work, and being familiar with all of the conditions surrounding the 
construction of the proposed project including the availability of materials and supplies, declares that 
this proposal is made without collusion with any other person, firm or corporation and agrees to 
construct the project in accordance with the contract documents, within the time set forth therein, and at 
the prices stated below. These prices are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required 
under the Contract Documents, of which this Bid Proposal is a part. 

The project has three distinct liquidated damage requirements. 

1) General Contract Liquidated Damages. 

Bidder shall agree to commence work under this Contract within fifteen (15) calendar days after 
the date of written "Notice to Proceed" and fully complete the project within 170 working days 
after start of the work. It is anticipated the NTP will be issued no later than January 15, 201 7. 
Bidder shall pay as liquidated damages in the sum of $500 per working day should the successful 
Bidder fail to complete the required contract work within the overall contract time limits unless 
the successful Bidder is granted a time extension. 

2) Environmental Stewardship Liquidated Damages (Interim Milestone A) 

Bidder shall agree to complete all work required and specified to be completed for Species 
Protection requirements as outlined in Section 14-6 Biological Resources no later than the dates 
established under Section 14-6. Bidder shall pay liquidated damages in the sum of $2,000 per 
working day past dates established in Section 14-6 should the successful Bidder fail to complete 
the required work of Interim Milestone A as described herein. 



3) Restoration of Full Traffic (Interim Milestone B) 

The Bidder shall agree to complete all work required and specified to be completed to resume 
two full lane width traffic through the work zone (Interim Milestone B) no later than August 11 , 
2017. Bidder shall pay liquidated damages in the sum of $10,000 per working day should the 
successful Bidder fail to complete the required work of Interim Milestone B as described herein. 

In the event the project is delayed due to an active nest of a protected bird species that occurs after the 
Bidder has implemented Species Protection measures and Biological Monitoring but prior to start of 
bridge painting activities, the Bidder shall agree to suspend the project until January 2018 and resume 
the project at no additional costs to the City. In the event of delay to 2018, the roadway closures shall be 
coordinated with the City prior to commencing work in 2018. 
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Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addendum: 

Bidder to perform all of the work described in the Contract Documents for the total bid amount entered. 

BID ITEMS 
Item Quantity Unit of Item Description Unit Total 
No. (Approximate) Measure Price 

1. 1 LS LEAD COMPLIANCE PLAN 
2. 1 LS CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS 
3. 1 LS TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM 

4. 
1 LS JOB SITE MANAGEMENT 

l LS 
PREP ARE WATER POLLUTION 

5. CONTROL PROGRAM 

1 LS 
CONTRACTOR SUPPLIED 

6. BIOLOGIST 
7. 1 LS TREE TRIMMING 

8. 
1 LS SPECIES PROTECTION 

1 LS 
CLEAN STRUCTURAL STEEL 

9. (EXISTING BRIDGE) 

1 LS 
PAINT STRUCTURAL STEEL 

10. (EXISTING BRIDGE) 

11. 
1 LS WORK AREA MONITORING 

12. 
1 LS MOBILIZATION 

TOTAL BID $ 

Note: The Bidder acknowledges that the total amount set forth above is for the entire project as 
represented by the Contract Documents regardless of itemization. 

(F) - Indicates Final Pay Item 

BASIS OF AWARD: 
The ranking for the basis of award shall be established based on the TOT AL BID. The contract, if 
awarded, shall be to the lowest responsible and responsive bid. 
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Attached is a bid guaranty bond duly completed by a guaranty company authorized to carry on business 
in the State of California in the amount of at least ten percent (I 0%) of the total amount of the bid, or 
alternately, there is attached a certified or cashier's check payable to the City in the amount of at least ten 
percent ( 10%) of the total amount of the bid. 

If this Bid Proposal is accepted, bidder agrees to sign the contract and to furnish the performance bond, 
labor and materials bond, maintenance bond, and the required evidences of insurance within ten (10) 
working days after receiving written notice of the award of the contract. If bidder fails to contract as 
provided herein or fails to provide the bonds and/or evidence of insurance, the City may at its option, 
determine the acceptance thereof shall be null and void, and the forfeiture of such security 
accompanying this Bid Proposal shall operate and the same shall be the property of the City of 
Pleasanton. 

This Bid Proposal shall be good and may not be modified, withdrawn or canceled for a period of ninety 
(90) calendar days after the date of the City's opening of bids. 

Bidder hereby certifies that the licensing information hereinafter stated is true and correct. Bidder 
further agrees, if the bid is accepted and a contract for performance of the work is entered into with the 
City, to so plan work and to prosecute it with such diligence that the work shall be completed within the 
time stipulated in the agreement. Under the penalty of perjury bidder affirms that, to the best of bidder's 
knowledge, the representations made in this bid are true. 

Bidders are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the contractors' State License Board. Any 
questions concerning a contractor may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors' State License Board. 

It is a misdemeanor for any person to submit a bid to a public agency in order to engage in the business 
or act in the capacity of a contractor within this state without having a license therefor, except for 
specific cases outlined in Business and Professions Code, Section 7028.15. 

Name of Bidder Contractor's License Number 

Signature of Bidder Expiration Date 

Print Name Address of Bidder 

Title of Signatory 
~·~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

State of Incorporation Telephone Number 

DIR Registration Number Contractor's Email Address 
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